
APPROVED MINUTES JULY 22, 2009                     7:00PM   
CITY OF GUNNISON PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING                                                                                           Page 1 of 6 
 

 

 
 

MEMBERS      PRESENT     ABSENT      EXCUSED 
 
DIANE LOTHAMER, CHAIR        X       
JIM SEITZ           X 
BOB BEDA           X 
HARVEY HARRIMAN         X   
GREG LARSON          X 
DELANEY KEATING            X   
COUNCILMEMBER ELLEN HARRIMAN       X 
              
OTHERS PRESENT:  DIRECTOR STEVE WESTBAY, PLANNER ANDIE RUGGERA, 
PLANNING TECHNICIAN PAM CUNNINGHAM, TIM SEIBERT, DENNIS MINCHOW, 
RICHARD KARAS, STEPHEN PIEROTTI, KEN COLEMAN 
 
I.   CALL TO ORDER AT 7:00 pm BY CHAIR DIANE LOTHAMER  
 
II.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
 
III. CONSIDERATION OF THE JULY 8, 2009 MEETING MINUTES. Commissioner 
Harriman moved to APPROVE the July 8, 2009 meeting minutes as corrected. 
Commissioner Seitz seconded the motion.   

 
Roll Call Yes:    Bob, Diane, Ellen, Jim, Harvey 

 Roll Call No:  
 Roll Call Abstain: Greg      

Motion Carried 
 
  
IV. PUBLIC HEARING AND POSSIBLE ACTION:  ZA 09-1, BY GUNNISON 
VALLEY PARTNERS FOR THE REQUEST OF A PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PUD) ZONING IN THE PROPOSED GUNNISON RISING 
ANNEXATION. 
 
Chair Lothamer reopened the public hearing at 7:05 p.m. 
Proof of Publication was shown for the record.  
 
Director Westbay informed the Commission that there has been an amended survey that 
corresponds to the eligibility survey heard by City Council. He noted for the record that the 
proposed annexation boundary has been amended to reflect the new boundary from the 
eligibility hearing and includes a 3 acre parcel within the city limits that is zoned R-1 (which 
is located in the proposed CWP district). The technical reason for including the parcel in the 
PUD is to incorporate the property where the ISDS is.  It does not change the land use and 
the application has been amended to reflect this. 
 



APPROVED MINUTES JULY 22, 2009                     7:00PM   
CITY OF GUNNISON PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING                                                                                           Page 2 of 6 
 

 

 
 

Chair Lothamer asked the status of the conceptual map of the roadway system and if the 
Commission has the actual language related to solar access (energy conservation). Director 
Westbay responded that both are contained within the staff recommendation. Solar access is 
listed as an issue to be considered.  The energy conservation language has not been formally 
discussed by the Commission. 
 
Chair Lothamer asked if the Applicants wanted to add anything for the record. Tim Seibert 
responded that he is in receipt of the revised documents and the memo from staff regarding 
development standards. He said that other than the areas noted as areas of disagreement, he 
has no comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:    Chair Lothamer asked if the public had any comments. 
 
Richard Karas stated that he has a question, rather than a comment, regarding the issue just 
raised. He would like to know the status of the Applicant’s views regarding solar access and 
the [applicable] standards. Tim Seibert responded that the Applicants drafted the language 
and are comfortable with what it says. The language is in the residential sections. He 
explained there are two sections of energy conservation: building siting and orientation; and, 
provisions for solar easements on adjoining lots.  
 
There were no public comments. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   Chair Lothamer asked Director Westbay to explain the timeline [of 
the application process].  Director Westbay explained that the Commission has been 
continuing the public hearing in order to address development standards.  At this point staff 
has arrived at a list of approximately 15 issues to be resolved that are at odds with the 
Applicant’s [proposal]. He further explained that the Commission can adopt development 
language that is most prudent for the City’s interest.  The second task is to address the 
findings and conditions and move in the direction of a recommendation.  He has provided a 
list of findings that the Commission can start working on.  It is incumbent upon the 
Commission, if more information is needed, to continue the public hearing.  
 
Chair Lothamer stated that it seems the public hearing should be continued one more time so 
that there will be time to vote and give a recommendation to City Council.   
 
City Manager Ken Coleman addressed the Commission.  He asked, “What is the purpose of 
continuing when there is no public comment and we have heard none for last few meetings?  
You have all the tools you need to formulate a recommendation.  I encourage you to continue 
that path. Staff has worked hard to formulate findings.” 
 
Richard Karas addressed the Commission, stating: “Generally the principle in deciding when 
the public hearing can be closed is when all information has been presented and there will be 
no more changes.  If it is the case that you have received all documentation that will be used 
in your decision, then I agree it should be closed. If you anticipate there will be further 
submissions in your decision, the public should have the opportunity to hear that.” 



APPROVED MINUTES JULY 22, 2009                     7:00PM   
CITY OF GUNNISON PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING                                                                                           Page 3 of 6 
 

 

 
 

 
Dennis Minchow, of Gunnison Valley Partners (the Applicant) addressed the Commission: 
“The Applicant in the zoning application has no additional information to present, we have 
read the staff report and recommendation, although we have differences of opinion, we will 
not provide any further discussion.  I encourage you to close the public hearing and work 
with staff to work together to find your recommendation to City Council.  We will not 
provide any additional information or comment.”   
 
Tim Seibert stated: “I want to clarify that we have all worked very hard to get through this 
process. Where we are, and you are close too, is knowing all the background put forward. We 
are at a point to find the best balance. Regarding the remaining issues, we need you to tell us 
what you like and don’t like.  We want to see the final staff report.  Any time you ask for 
more information it prolongs it.  We want a concise recommendation from this body. Staff 
has done a good job of putting information together―we don’t agree with it all, but we 
understand where they are coming from.”  
 
Chair Lothamer asked Staff if they had anything to add.  Director Westbay stated he had 
nothing to add.  
 
Chair Lothamer stated: “If we close, we are required to have a decision in 21 days.”  She 
asked the Commission if they felt they can meet that time line and if they could meet the next 
three Wednesdays. Director Westbay said that he feels everything could be finished in a few 
meetings. He just needs some direction from the Commission.  
 
Commissioner Beda stated that 21 days would be August 12th.  The Commission could meet 
July 29th, August 5th and August 12th.  
 
Commissioner Seitz stated, “My fear is that we get to the end and have citizens come up and 
say they didn’t know anything about this.” He said he was walking through the southeast part 
of town and decided to approach people and ask if they knew about the proposed sewage lift 
station in that part of town.  Those he spoke to didn’t. He wondered how many others don’t 
know anything about it.  He further stated, “I worry about the consequences that may happen.  
We aren’t rushing. We have given adequate notice but it has dragged out so long people have 
forgotten.  The editor of our paper lives near there [where the sewage lift station is 
proposed]; I wonder if he knows about the sewage lift station in his back yard.  A lot of the 
questions have been asked over and over again in this process.”  
 
Commissioner Beda asked, “Is this the fourth continuation? We had input at the first and 
second [public hearing] none at the third and fourth, and none in the interim.  It has been well 
over a month since the last continuation. I understand what Jim is saying, but it isn’t secret, it 
has been in the paper.  We could continue forever, maybe someone will show up. It is getting 
to the point where it is like a tennis match, if it keeps going on it gets sloppier and people 
lose interest.  We need to put the burden on us and do it in 21 days.  If the Applicant says 
there are no changes…” 
 



APPROVED MINUTES JULY 22, 2009                     7:00PM   
CITY OF GUNNISON PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING                                                                                           Page 4 of 6 
 

 

 
 

Commissioner Harriman asked: “If we close, does that mean the public cannot make 
anymore comments?” Director Westbay responded that there will be a public hearing before 
City Council, but this will be the last time before the Commission.  Commissioner Harriman 
continued, “I agree with Jim, however, one of the requirements of being a good citizen is 
keeping informed.  You can’t legislate against stupidity.  Not that people are stupid, but they 
don’t think about things like this, and suddenly become aware.  People have had tremendous 
opportunity.”  
 
Commissioner Seitz stated, “I agree. But, we are a one paper town and the paper comes out 
on Thursday and our meetings are on Wednesday. People forget by next week.  A project of 
this size and what it means forever and ever. I am disappointed in the lack of coverage [in the 
paper]. This is the biggest thing in Gunnison for 100 years.  In the last year of newspapers 
there has not been enough exposure.  I am glad the press is here tonight.” 
 
Commissioner Beda asked, “Once we get our recommendation and present it to City Council, 
which will be a document the public can come and respond to again, what happens then?  
Does it come back to us?” Director Westbay responded that it could be remanded back to 
P&Z. He suggested there could be a joint meeting with P&Z and City Council. He further 
said that [considering] the amount of detail and turmoil to get to this point, expressing [the 
Commission’s views] in person is important.  
 
Commissioner Beda asked if, when the Commission comes forward with [a 
recommendation], it can support some elements and not others.  Director Westbay responded 
that is the Commission’s prerogative. He cautioned that the property belongs to the 
Applicants and they have proposed what they feel is best use of their property.  The 
Commission doesn’t have the insight of their financial requirements to develop the property.  
But, in terms of land use, the Commission can say why some uses are appropriate or not.  
 
Commissioner Beda asked, “We don’t have to say all is fine, or nothing is fine, but we can 
say what is more favorable?”  Director Westbay replied that there are some quality elements 
to consider and serious repercussions to address for an informed decision. 
 
Commissioner Harriman asked if 21 days will be enough time to develop findings and 
conditions. Director Westbay stated he feels it is possible. He said the Code is silent on what 
happens if the Commission is late in making a recommendation.  This is a legislative action 
for all intents and purposes and, if the Commission needs more time, they should tell City 
Council, but start working toward that end. 
 
Commissioner Larson stated that, “In a 21 day time frame, I could make a good contribution.  
It is good to have a fresh set of eyes. I have been following this process for a great deal of 
time and respect the time that has gone in.  I agree it is time to move on to the next step.”  
 
Director Westbay compared the next step to two trains on parallel tracks: 1) the annexation 
negotiation leading to an ordinance and, 2) land use.  “Those [processes] will have to 
converge and timelines will mandate when those occur.  To advance the calendar, we have to 



APPROVED MINUTES JULY 22, 2009                     7:00PM   
CITY OF GUNNISON PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING                                                                                           Page 5 of 6 
 

 

 
 

look at statutory provisions and notification to the Gunnison Rural Electric Association 
(REA) about the annexation.  Thirty days prior to consideration of the annexation ordinance 
it is required that a letter be sent to REA notifying them.  On the City Council track is the 
MOU with WSC and the annexation agreement language. I would not anticipate a public 
hearing for at least 30-45 days from tonight. City Council has not passed a resolution 
determining it is eligible.” 
 
Chair Lothamer closed the public hearing at 7:32 p.m. 
 
V. UNSCHEDULED CITIZENS:  
City Manager Ken Coleman addressed the Commission.  He stated, “From my observance, I 
would like to say that everyone has worked diligently and honestly to put out the best and 
come up with a conclusion that is in the best interest of the community.  You, as volunteers, 
have put in incredible effort and I want to thank you for the work you have done, from a 
personal point of view, more than from a public official point of view.”  
 
VI. COUNCIL UPDATE. Councilor Harriman reported on the City Council meeting of 
July 21, 2009, the Council: 

• held a work session, so took no action; 
• discussed the contract for solar heating for the pool; and, 
• discussed the MOU with WSC and the annexation agreement. 
 

 VII.  PLANNING STAFF UPDATE:  
Director Westbay reported; 

• Current planning activity includes a Conditional Use for P&Z on August 12th, a 
Variance application for BOZA, and a License Agreement for City Council. 

• Planning for the VanTuyl Ranch is moving forward. An open house will be held on 
August 13th from 3:00-7:00, hopefully at the IOOF Park, to gather input from people 
downtown.  On August 6th from 5:15-7:00 the public will be invited to a site tour of 
the ranch. A site tour will also be available on the day of the open house.  

• Last week the server went down in the CD office.  Germane files for the zoning 
application were saved on other drives and much of the VanTuyl data was recovered 
from other sources.  Hopefully by next week all data will be recovered. 

• Planner Ruggera gave an update on the downtown revitalization project.  A local 
artist, Bob Moore, is doing illustrative drawings. Rick Miller and Andie will be 
walking around to businesses to get input.  She is also working on a kiosk for IOOF 
Park.  

 
VIII. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS:   

• Commissioner Beda asked if City Fest will be held this year.  (It was cut from the 
budget this year, so won’t be held.) 

• He also asked where the new garbage cans will be displayed. City Manager Ken 
Coleman replied that Public Works Director, Tex Bradford, will figure out where they 
will be displayed. There are at Public Works currently. 



APPROVED MINUTES JULY 22, 2009                     7:00PM   
CITY OF GUNNISON PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING                                                                                           Page 6 of 6 
 

 

 
 

• Commissioner Beda said he had the opportunity to do a barbeque in the park a few 
weeks ago and went to Legion Park.  He asked when the barbeque grates were 
removed.  City Manager Coleman will check to see what happened to them. 
Commissioner Beda said he then went to CharMar Park (searching for BBQ grates) 
and was disappointed in how shabby the park is looking―the weeds were two feet 
high, the chain link fence was torn down, the other fence was bent up, the barbeque 
grill was tilted, and the post for doggy bags was falling down.  He stated that it was 
sad to see, especially with the money that has been invested in the tennis courts and 
the new trail.  He continued, stating that the City insists that people dedicate land and 
open space, but there is a cost to the City and if maintenance gets cut in lean times, 
that should be considered [when asking for dedicated park space].  

• Commissioner Seitz brought up the issue of people raising chickens. He said that the 
Commission may want to discuss more about that later because there are other 
reasons for not having poultry in a town.  He said he wants to say, on the record, “I 
want to speak for the skunks, coyote, fox and hawk who think this is easy pickings. 
Then they will be satisfied with the neighbor’s cat and small dog. Don’t blame the 
critters who do what they naturally do. Let’s not have to control fox and coyote 
populations.” 

• Commissioner Harriman said, “I want to reiterate what Jim and Bob said about the 
annexation.  I have been involved for over 20 years [in City government]. To 
reinforce, this is the biggest operation we have had. The effects can be far reaching.  I 
am hoping the media will get that message out. It is a big deal.  A lot of people I talk 
to are not aware of it and slough it off.  It is a big deal. A lot of folks will be happy or 
unhappy one way or the other.  Some will be affected strongly, they should pay 
attention.” 

• Commissioner Larson said, “I am happy to be here and look forward to keeping 
process ongoing.”  

 
IX. ADJOURN  
 
Chair Diane Lothamer adjourned the meeting into a work session at approximately 7:45p.m. 
 
       ________________________ 
       Diane Lothamer, Chair 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Pam Cunningham, Secretary  


